UNITED
NATIONS C R C

\‘:\\ﬁ/ Convention on the D ERAL
72  Rights of the Child CRC/ O SR 579

8 Cct ober 1999

Original: ENGLISH

COW TTEE ON THE RI GHTS OF THE CHI LD
Twent y- second session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 579t h MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Monday, 4 October 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: Ms. MOKHUANE

| ater: Ms. MBA

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS BY STATES PARTI ES (conti nued)

Initial report of the Netherlands (conti nued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so incorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to
the O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Ceneva.

Any corrections to the records of the public neetings of the Conmittee
at this session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued
shortly after the end of the session.

GE. 99- 44523 (E)



CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS BY STATES PARTIES (agenda item 4) (continued)

Initial report of the Netherlands (continued) [CRC/ C/51/Add. 1;

HRI / CORE/ 1/ Add. 66; CRC/C/ Q NET/1 (list of issues); Witten replies of
the Governnent of the Netherlands to questions raised in the list of
i ssues (document with no symbol distributed in the nmeeting roomin
English only)]

In the absence of Ms. Mwoi, Ms. Mkhuane took the Chair

1. At the invitation of the Chairperson, the menbers of the del egation of
the Netherlands resuned their places at the Committee table.

2. The CHAI RPERSON invited the del egation of the Netherlands to resune its
replies to the Conmittee' s questions.

3. M. HALFF (Netherlands), replying to a question remaining fromthe first
round, said that the Netherlands total devel opnment aid budget was
approximately $3 billion, $5.5 mllion of which had been made available to
programes for the pronotion of children's rights in 1998 and 1999; in 1999 an
additional $5 million had been allocated to programmes to conbat child | abour

4, Turning to questions fromthe second round, he said he appreciated

M. Fulci's concerns regarding the |level of representation of the Netherl ands
del egation to the Conmittee and would comuni cate themto his Government, but
poi nted out that Netherlands del egations to all United Nations treaty bodies
had al ways been headed by diplomats. In reply to M. Fulci's question on
measures to avoid discrimnation against foreign children, he referred the
menbers to his delegation's earlier reply to question 27 of the list of

i ssues.

5. Wth regard to Ms. Tigerstedt-Tahtel & s suggestion that the Netherl ands
involve NGOs in the drafting of its reports, as he had stated at the preceding
meeting, he did not agree that such an approach woul d be useful. Many NGOs
endorsed his views and preferred to retain their independence. 1In reply to
anot her question, he reiterated that the Netherlands Antilles was a fully
autononous entity and that the Hague had no nmore than a technical invol venment
in the preparation of its report to the Conmittee.

6. Hi s del egati on had taken due note of Ms. Sardenberg's concerns
regardi ng the manner in which the Netherlands Government coordi nated

i npl enmentati on of the Convention and would transmt themto his Government.
He al so wi shed to assure Ms. Sardenberg that his Government |istened to and
| earned from NGOs and appreciated the role they played in the inplenentation
of the Conventi on.

7. The Netherl ands had entered a reservation to article 26 of the
Convention because it felt that the article mght be interpreted as giving
children an individual right to social security. Concerning a question about
rai sing the age of admission to the mlitary, he said that there were no plans
to raise the present age limt, which was 17.



CRC/ C/ SR. 579

page 3
8. The children's reading programe was still in progress, hence there had
not yet been a final evaluation. In addition to that progranme, the

Net her |l ands conducted a children's book week to pronote readi ng, and young
peopl e were involved in the general selection of books for prizes. Concerning
a question about violence in schools, he referred the nmenbers to his

del egation's witten reply to question 25 of the list of issues.

9. M. JANSEN (Net herlands), replying to a question by Ms. Karp, confirmed
the fact that children 16 years and ol der were considered to have reached
majority for nedical purposes. For children younger than 16, the consent of

both parents and child was needed for nedical treatnment. |In cases involving
serious danger to the child, it was not mandatory to obtain the parents
consent to nedical treatnent, and the parents m ght not even be informed. 1In

cases of sexual abuse by parents, a formal conplaint was no | onger necessary
to initiate proceedi ngs, although one had to be furnished by the Child Care
and Protection Board before the end of the proceedings. The formal conplaint
requi renment woul d be abolished altogether in the near future. As to the

| odgi ng of conplaints of abuse in custodial institutions, he referred to the
del egation's witten replies. Conplaints could be submtted to the supervisor
on duty for the nonth, with right of appeal to the full supervisory commttee.
The bill on custodial institutions would essentially preserve that system but
woul d expand it to include nmediation, which the Governnment felt was the best
means of resolving conflicts.

10. The affiliation |aw had come into effect on 1 April 1998. Children who
denied the paternity of their presunmed biol ogical fathers ceased to have a

| egal father and cane under the parental responsibility of their nothers,

al though in nost cases children were recogni zed by their real fathers.

11. The “best interests of the child” was an inportant issue in the

Net herl ands, in both | egislation and practice. Fromhis experience as a court
judge, for exanple, he knew that right of access of a parent to a child was
rarely deni ed, except in cases involving serious danger to the child.
Regarding the training of juvenile judges in the Convention, he said that the
law curricul umincluded donestic and international famly |law, and that
judges' training included training in the Convention and famly law in

gener al

12. In reply to another question, he said that the Netherlands reservation
to the International Covenant on Civil and Political R ghts had beconme
obsol ete and that the CGovernnent would consider its wthdrawal

13. Li ke other countries the Netherlands had considered the possibility of
i ntroduci ng a bl anket prohibition of corporal punishment by parents or other
persons; it had decided that such prohibition would be of a synbolic nature
and had not introduced it for the tine being. Corporal punishnent in
custodial institutions was used only when safety was at risk and as a | ast
resort. In the rare cases where it was used, it was carefully nonitored and
the Child Care and Protection Board was al ways i nformed.

14. Children received either their father's or their nother's surnane, a
deci sion which had to be taken at the | atest when the child's birth was
regi stered. |If a couple was unable to agree on the name, the child was given



CRC/ ¢/ SR. 579
page 4

the father's surnane. That system m ght be di sappointing to wonen, but it
had rai sed no serious problens to date, and in any event cases where a couple
was unable to agree were rare.

15. To combat discrimnation in general, there was a special bureau wthin
the justice system headed by a public prosecutor, whose role was to prevent
di scrimnation against children of foreign origin. Discrimnation was also
conbated through a series of activities at the |Iocal |evel, such as exchange
programes between schools and centres for asylum seekers.

16. M. HALFE (Netherlands), replying to a question about the media's role
in dissem nating the Convention, said that the Netherlands television and
radi o educati onal channel was preparing an extensive radi o progranme on the
rights of the child, consisting of 10 broadcasts, each dealing with one right.

17. M. van LOON (Netherlands) said that he represented the internationa
affairs departnent of the Mnistry of Health, Wl fare and Sport, but that a
series of departnments were responsible for the formulation of youth policies.
Partici pati on of young people was an inportant issue at the national |evel,
and policy was based on a new style of adm nistrative agreement between the
central, provincial and conmunity |evels of Government. The centra
Government was responsi ble for providing a framework for youth participation
policies and the other |evels for devel oping those policies. The provinces
were responsible for policy developnment in the field of youth services and the
comunities concentrated on preventive or general youth policies. There was
an ongoi ng four-year (1998-2002) project called Local Youth Policy, whose aim
was to pronote participation, to which the Governnment had all ocated

3 mllion guilders, or $1.15 nmillion. He noted that the provincial and
comunity governnments funded youth policies through their regul ar budgets.

18. No speci al funding was provided for the involvenent of NGOs in youth
participation policies. NG were able to influence policy-nmaking through
regul ar channels such as parliamentary procedure. Because the Government was
aware of the inmportance of participation in policy inplenmentation by the
beneficiaries thensel ves, a document on youth participation was being
prepared, aimed at involving young people in the policy-making process; it
woul d be submitted to Parlianment in Novenber or Decenber 1999. 1In the
framework of a structured di al ogue established by his Governnment wi th NGOs,
his mnistry regularly consulted NGOs on policy making in a series of fields,
including policies relating to youth. The National Youth Debate 1995-1997
conti nued annually, essentially as an agenda-setting event ainmed at keeping
the debate alive. There was no special Governnment policy in the area of

trai ning of professionals working with youth. Such training was included in
the educational institutions' regular curricula.

19. Repl ying to questions on viol ence and pornography transm tted through
the nedia, including the Internet, he said that Parlianment, recognizing the
harnful effects such activity could have on young peopl e, had anended the
Medi a Act and had set up a ministerial council to frame additional policy in
that regard. An intergovernmental working party had al so been forned to
identify policy goals for the future.



CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 5

20. However, it was difficult to strike a bal ance between ensuring freedom
of expression and protecti ng young people fromviol ence and pornography. 1In
the end, it had been decided to nake nmonitoring self-regulatory, at al

levels. Indeed, it was the responsibility of parents to nonitor what their
children were exposed to in the nmedia. That, of course, did not relieve the
Governnment of its role as provider of the means by which parents could
effectively performthat role. |In fact, an organization had recently been
established to classify video nmaterial and films and deci de what was fit for
children’s viewing. Furthernore, Dutch crimnal |aw had been revised to cover
crimnal offences conmitted via new el ectronic nmedia, including the Internet.

21. Lastly, the issue of child abuse reporting centres and reportedly | ong
waiting lists had been raised in the nedia. As a result, Parlianment had
requested the Junior Mnister of Health, Wl fare and Sports to investigate the
matter. As it appeared that there were no reliable data as to the nunmber of
people on waiting lists, a new information system had been set up to inprove
avai |l abl e statistics. The Junior Mnister had conceded that if the situation
was i ndeed as clai med, then sonmething had to be done. |In addition, child
abuse reporting centres and youth services bureaux received suppl enentary
funding fromthe provinces and larger cities and it was expected that those
amounts could total 30 mllion guilders by 2000.

22. The CHAI RPERSON reni nded the del egati on of the outstandi ng questions
that remai ned unanswered and asked Ms. Karp to clarify the question she had
posed.

23. Ms. KARP said that one crucial question that remained to be answered
related to information provided to children. Indeed, one of the main points
rai sed by the children who had attended the pre-sessional neeting had been
that often the children’ s right to information was not respected.

24. Ms. Moi took the Chair

25. The CHAI RPERSON invited the menmbers of the Conmittee to ask fol |l ow up
guestions on general principles and civil rights and freedons.

26. Ms. KARP, returning to the issue of children's right to information,
poi nted out that there was no focal point in the Netherlands where children
could obtain information. The existing witten material was not sufficient;
chil dren needed to have a place where they could have their questions

answer ed, especially concerning issues which they would prefer not to discuss
with their parents or on which parents thenselves were ill-equipped to give
answers, such as AIDS

27. Turning to youth participation, she asked why the old progranme had been
repl aced by a new one and, supported by Ms. Quedraogo and Ms. Sardenberg,
whet her children's views had been consulted in that regard.

28. Ms. TIGERSTEDT-TAHTELA, referring to the four objectives set by the new
Government (page 14, witten replies) and which targeted | owincome fanlies,
asked for the latest information in that respect and whether parents had been

i nvolved in the process.




CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 6

29. M. RABAH said he would |like to know whet her there had been any
precedent of the Convention being directly or indirectly invoked in Dutch
fam |y or juvenile courts.

30. Ms. SARDENBERG said she wel coned the information on non-governnenta
organi zation (NGO) participation and hoped that such participation would al so
apply to national policies. She applauded the Youth Participation Programre
and wondered whether it had taken the Convention into account and whet her
there had been a budget allocation for its inplenentation. She acknow edged
that ensuring youth participation was not an easy task. It was one that
required research and evaluation, since it was not just a question of becom ng
acquainted with children’s views but also of incorporating theminto policies.

31. She asked for clarification as to how i npl ementation of the provisions
of the Convention was harnoni zed between the different |evels of Governnent.
Furthernore, in relation to the child abuse reporting centres, were the public
rel ati ons canpai gn and tel ephone helplines already in place? The Conmittee
had received information to the effect that wonmen were the objects of

di scrimnation at work and wondered what neasures had been enpl oyed to correct
that situation. She requested information on the 20/20 initiative, and asked
whet her there was a public debate on euthanasia for children over 12 years.
VWhat were the views of the different sectors of society on that subject?

32. The CHAI RPERSON reni nded the del egati on that questions remained to be
answered with regard to racial discrimnation in schools and paternity.

33. Ms. OUEDRAOGO stressed the need for young people to be involved
directly in policies and decisions that affected themand inquired as to the
conmposition and functioning of the youth councils.

34. Ms. TIGERSTEDT- TAHTELA asked whet her youth counselling centres were
handl ed at the nunicipal or regional level. Perhaps waiting |lists were |ong
because counselling was dealt with at the regional |evel, whereas counselling,
by nature, should be offered as quickly as possible.

35. Ms. KARP wondered whether the campai gn undertaken to root out violence
in schools was to becone a pernmanent feature.

The neeting was suspended at 4.05 p.m and resuned at 4.20 p. m

36. M. HALFE (The Net herl ands) thanked the Chairperson for rem nding his
del egati on about outstandi ng questions but explained that in order to answer
some of them the del egati on needed to nake contact with The Hague. |In other
cases the answers would have to be submitted in witing at a | ater date.
Replying to the question on the 20/20 initiative, he said that he was aware of
the initiative but was not sure howit related to the Convention. He
guestioned the rel evance of wonen’s issues, raised by Ms. Sardenberg, to the
current discussion about children’ s issues, as they appeared to fall outside
the scope of the neeting, but added that the del egation was trying to obtain

i nformati on about wonmen at the workpl ace.

37. M s. SARDENBERG poi nted out that very often wonen’s and children’s
issues were intimately related. For instance, female part-time enpl oynent




CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 7

m ght be linked to the | ack of day-care facilities. What was nore, efforts
were being made to integrate the Convention on the Rights of the Child and the
Convention on the Elimnation of All Forms of Discrimnation against Wnen.
However, it was left up to the discretion of the del egation to answer the
guestion or not.

38. M. HALFE (Netherlands), turning to the question related to violence in
school s, said that the “Safe School s” canpai gn was expected to end in 2000 and
woul d be evaluated at that point. Perhaps the problem would not have been
conpletely elimnated by then but violence in schools would remain an

i mportant priority in Governnment policy.

39. M. JANSEN ( Net herl ands), addressing the issue of dual crimnality, said
that a Dutch citizen could be prosecuted in another country if the offence
committed was a crimnal offence in that country as well. Oherwise, it would
be difficult to gather evidence. Clearly the issue was not an easy one and
required a | ot of thought.

40. The CHAI RPERSON expl ained that if, for exanple, a Dutch paedophile
committed an offence in Indonesia, there m ght be an extra-territoria
agreenent that would allow I ndonesia to prosecute that person in coll aboration
with the Dutch authorities. Sonme countries had already signed such agreenents
and she hoped that the Netherlands would foll ow suit.

41. Ms. KARP pointed out that since the Stockhol m Conference a nunber of
countries had changed their views on the matter of dual crimnality and that
it was now i ncunbent upon all civilized societies to ensure that they did not
in any way condone the violation of children' s rights.

42. The CHAI RPERSON said that the |aws on sexual exploitation were quite
weak in a nunmber of countries but that 1LO Convention No. 182 on the worst
forms of child |abour pressed even poorer countries to introduce such | aws.

43. M. JANSEN (Net herlands) said that despite the difficulties inherent in
the prosecution of those involved in child prostitution, the Governnment had
had some success in past years. The Committee’s advice in that regard was
wel comre. An evaluation of the conplaints procedures which had first cone into
force in Decenber 1997 and an assessment of the participation of children in
youth institutions had been schedul ed for the year 2000. 1In cases where it
was proven that a father was not the biological father of a child, the father
the child or the nother could each take | egal action to deny paternity. The
child woul d subsequently be without a | egal father, unless sone adoption
procedure was undertaken or, in the case of the biological father, unless he
officially recognized the child. |In some cases fathers were unwilling to
recogni ze their children. Although the technical means existed to establish
paternity, the State could not do nuch to alter the father’s will and ensure
that he would care for the child

44, Ref erence was often made to the Conventi on when deci sions were taken
regarding the best interests of refugee children. As to whether the
Convention itself was self-executing, the Suprene Court had yet to reach a
final decision. At best, the Court mght find that sone of its provisions
were self-executing, but certainly not all. 1In early August 1999 a bill had
been introduced in Parliament which would give children over 16 the right to
request euthanasia without the parents’ consent. The same bill would rmake it



CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 8

possible for a doctor, with the consent of the parents, to allow a child over
the age of 12 to request euthanasia, provided he determ ned that the child had
sufficient understanding. Mny children in such circunstances woul d be
particularly mature for their age. The bill, which had of course been drafted
with the best intentions, had given rise to a nationw de debate, and its
passage was not certain

45, M. van LOON (Netherlands) said that when it had first been drafted, the
bill had not given children under the age of 16 the right to request

eut hanasia. It had been nodified at the request of the Council of State,

whi ch i ssued advisory opinions on all draft |laws before they went to
Parliament. The Council of State had reasoned that since children between the
ages of 12 and 16 who were deened to be responsible were already entitled to
refuse nedical treatnment at that age, the bill's provisions should be brought
into line with that policy. 1In any event, euthanasia w thout parental consent
was unt hinkable in the case of a child under 16.

46. Everyone had the opportunity to influence policy through the work of
NGOs, correspondence, political denonstrations or other activities. 1In the
speci fic case of youth policy, the annual National Youth Debate played an

i nportant role in agenda-setting. A structured di al ogue was bei ng established
for the discussion of international policy, and consideration was being given
to the establishment of a simlar mechanismfor drawing up national policy. A
conference had al ready been held on that subject, and had called for NGO and
private companies to play a greater role not only in drawing up policy, but

al so in inplenmentation.

47. The central Governnent was inplementing a four-year project whereby it
provi ded about US$ 1.5 mllion in annual subsidies to the association of |oca
comunities for an integrated youth policy programre. Generally, provinces
and comunities paid for their youth projects fromneans distributed to them
by the central Governnent and fromtheir own tax revenues.

48. Ms. TIGERSTEDT- TAHTELA, noving on to the subject of famly environnent
and alternative care, said that she understood that there were |long waiting
lists for foster care, and that the Governnent intended to enter into

mul ti-year agreenments with the other parties involved. Perhaps the del egation
coul d expl ain what those agreenents would entail. The separate custodia
institutions were apparently divided respectively into care and treatnent
centres, and their capacities were adjusted annually based on demand
forecasts. Wre those forecasts nade by the central Governnment, the provinces
or local nmunicipalities? How was demand esti mated, and how was the

i nformati on conveyed fromthe base to the central planners? Wat were the
financial inplications?

49. Ms. KARP asked whet her the new policy paper on participation included
budgetary provisions. The Commttee had observed that the pronotion of child
participation required infrastructure and training, for which budgetary

al l ocations had to be made. The question of euthanasia was very conplex. Did
the Governnent think it advisable to |eave it up to a single doctor to decide
whet her a child of 16 was sufficiently mature and responsible to opt for

eut hanasi a? Had the Governnment considered the possibility of manipulation or
abuse by private doctors who acted in their own interests instead of those of
the child? Perhaps the decision should rest with Governnent services instead.



CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 9

50. When a child was renoved fromthe famly and placed in an institution
were there any procedures to give the child counselling, to ensure that the
child s views woul d be taken into account and to provide the child with
sufficient information? What mechani snms existed to guarantee that the care
institution acted in the best interests of the child, and not only in the best
interests of the institution itself? Did the Government have any plan of
action to address the problemof child nortality anmong minority groups, which
was hi gher than the national average?

51. M. FULCI asked whet her any research had been conducted into the
situation of children raised in non-traditional famlies, and specifically
into their education, care and above all psychol ogi cal devel opment. Referring
to the fact that nearly all the children adopted in the Netherlands were
foreigners, he asked whether the Governnment could provide a list of the
countries of origin. Wre there some countries which generally sent nore
children for adoption?

52. M. RABAH referred to the abduction of children from broken hones and
their illegal transfer to other countries. Had the Netherlands entered into
any bilateral international agreenents to ensure that the best interests of
such children were taken into account while such cases were pending before the
courts?

53. Ms. OUEDRAOGO, noting that a programme for inproving the quality of
life of children living in care institutions had been set up by the Mnistries
of Education, Culture and Science and of Justice, asked how the situation had
evol ved vis-a-vis the progranme’s objectives and the recommendati ons made by
the committee set up by the two mnistries to inprove the nonitoring of
child-care institutions. Secondly, while aware that the Mnistry of Justice
was responsi ble for adoption in general, she wondered how nati onal and

i ntercountry adoptions were followed up and by what nechanism She woul d al so
like to know what sol utions had been found to the confidentiality and other
probl ems besetting the Child Care and Protection Advisory Board. She asked
whet her any of the projects discontinued precisely on account of those

probl ems had been resunmed. G ven that mstreatnent was still on the increase,
had any studi es been conducted to discover its root causes? And what woul d be
done to reduce it?

54, The findings of the scientific study carried out on psychosocia

di agnoses in alleged cases of sexual violence against children had not been
available at the time the report had been drafted. Could the del egation
informthe Conmttee of the broad outlines of those findings and of the main
recommendati ons fornul ated? Referring to reports of sexual violence in
school s, as stated in paragraph 172 of the Netherlands report, she wi shed to
know what was being done to renedy that state of affairs; what the current
situation was; what puni shment had been neted out to the offending teachers;
and what steps were being taken to prevent its recurrence. On the subject of
breastfeedi ng, she said that since many wonen gave birth at honme - and
therefore | acked nonitoring or appropriate encouragenent - and the

m | k-substitute conpani es conducted such massive publicity canpaigns, making
the Netherlands one of the countries with the | owest breastfeeding rate in
Eur ope, she wi shed to know whether the authorities had any plans to inprove
its policy for the pronotion of breastfeeding, which was far better for
children s health.



CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 10

55. Ms. KARP asked what AIDS prevention and counselling services were
available to children, the Commttee having heard fromsonme children that they
were required to pay for tests or counselling. Along simlar lines, she

wi shed to know who paid private doctors for nedical consultations sought by
children, when availing thenselves of their right to consult a doctor w thout
their parents’ consent. How was that right exercised in practical ternms? She
al so understood that there were long waiting lists for nental -health

exam nation or treatnent for children referred by the courts. She asked

whet her the Netherl ands had capacity problenms as regards juvenile

mental -health facilities, and whether such facilities existed countryw de.

What were the rules governing children’s ability to contest their adm ssion to
a mental hospital, even with parental consent? What avenues coul d they

expl ore to have the decision reviewed?

56. Ms. SARDENBERG agreeing with Ms. Karp on the conpl ex issue of

eut hanasia, was interested to know whether it was a subject of public debate
in the Netherlands and whether children could participate. In that

connection, she called for clarification of an earlier reply by the del egation
concerning the National Youth Debate, which contradicted the report, where it
was described as an inportant event attended by the Prime Mnister and ot her
dignitaries, with the participation of youth panels and individual children
and culmnating in a plethora of proposals. Wy, then, had the del egation
described it as a nerely media event?

57. M. FULC, following up Ms. Quedraogo’s question, said that pronotion
of breastfeeding conprised three main aspects: the need for positive
education, information and pronotion of its advantages; the need to counter
t he negative inpact of the comercial marketing of milk substitutes; and nost
i mportantly, the need to warn H V-infected nothers that the di sease was
transm ssi bl e through breast mlk. How were those three aspects, especially
the | ast, being addressed by the Dutch authorities? The horrible problem of
femal e genital mutilation, usually associated with devel opi ng countri es,
especially in Africa, was currently rearing its ugly head in the

i ndustrialized countries as a result of immgration. He had been happy to
read in the report that the Netherlands regarded the practice as a form of
oppression of wonen and that a national female circuntision informtion and
consul tation centre had been set up in 1993.

58. It was his understanding that the problem arose chiefly with wonen and
girls from Somalia, who constituted the |argest refugee group in the

Net herl ands. What kind of strategy was the centre developing for directly

i nform ng refugee wonen and girls? He asked the delegation to share with the
Conmittee its assessnent of the inplenentation of the country’ s anti-excision
measures, and to say how the affected women had responded. How did living in
a nodern industrialized society influence that traditional practice anong

i mm grant wonmen? Had the Dutch Governnent undertaken any research in that
area?

59. Ms. TIGERSTEDT-TAHTELA, referring to viol ence against and negl ect of
children, welcomed the statenent, contained in the reply to question 20 on the
list of issues, that a working group on child-abuse reporting centres had been
set up in 1994 by the Mnisters/State Secretaries for Justice and for Health,
Wel fare and Sport, who had submitted a position paper to the Lower House of
Parliament in md-1998, endorsing the working group’s conprehensive definition
of the term*“child abuse”. However, considering that 16,000 cases had been




CRC/ C/ SR. 579
page 11

reported in 1998, she wondered whether, if the subject was taboo in the

Net herl ands, there mi ght not be thousands nore that had gone unreported.

Al so, given the stated aimof establishing a countryw de network of centres by
t he begi nning of 2000, she asked how many had been created so far, and whether
they would be the responsibility of the central Governnment or the |oca
authorities. She asked for an explanation as to why the nedia, which was an

i deal source of awareness-raising of the problem would be involved only at a
much | ater stage.

60. She wondered when the Governnent intended to nake its prom sed budget
increase in connection with its “client-based” health budgeting. Wuld it do
so during the forthcom ng budget period? The report had stated that there
were sonme 58, 000 househol ds - including 100,000 children - currently living
bel ow the poverty line. Had any research been conducted to determ ne the
cause of that poverty, especially as it affected the health of children?

61. Ms. OUEDRAOGO, returning to the issue of female genital nutilation,
cited the report’s statenent that preventive neasures were being taken, but

wi t hout any clarification of how matters currently stood as a result of those
measures. She understood that children of immgrants were sent back to their
countries of origin for the operation and later returned to the Netherl ands.
How was the Government addressing that situation?

62. Ms. KARP, turning to education, leisure and cultural activities, said
that, while aware that pupil-participation structures existed in secondary
education, she w shed to know whether the same was true for primary education
If not, were there any plans to expand then? Human rights in general, and
children’s rights in particular, appeared to be taught exclusively as an

adj unct to other subjects. Also, in view of the provision that they should
forman obligatory part of the school curriculum teacher-training curricula
for both education |levels should include appropriate methods of teaching
children's rights as such. 1t was never too early to institute that branch of
education. If it were confined to secondary education, that would inply that
pri mary school chil dren were incapabl e of conprehendi ng human rights. From

i nformati on she had received, it appeared that budget cuts had caused a

radi cal reduction, if not the abolition, of health-care services provided in
sonme primary schools. [If that was the case, what was being doing to

suppl enent children’s access to such care?

63. Ms. SARDENBERG citing the reference in the witten replies to a
“National Protocol on Bullying” and a “Bullying Test”, w shed to know exactly
what the latter entailed and howit tied in with the Protocol

64. M. FULCI called on the delegation to corroborate or refute information
he had received to the effect that 2.5 per cent of all new teacher enrol nents
in the country were reserved for honpsexual s.

The neeting rose at 5.40 p.m




